
 
 

 
Real Estate Commission Meeting 

 
September 7, 2023 

 
 
 

Atwood Building 
550 W 7th Avenue 

Ste 1550 
 

Anchorage 
 
 
 

    



Roll Call 
Traci Heaton 

Elizabeth Schok 

Chad Stigen 

Devon Doran 

Cheryl Markwood 



STATE OF ALASKA 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS, BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL LICENSING 

 
Tentative Meeting Agenda 

 
REAL ESTATE COMMISSION MEETING 

September 7, 2023 
 

                       Atwood Building 550 W. 7th Ave. Suite 1550  
Anchorage, AK 

 
                    
            ZOOM Info: Join meeting: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86544255113 
 
                                     Meeting ID: 865 4425 5113   Passcode: 373430                  
                                      Call-In: +1 (669)900- 6833 or (253)215-8782  

 
 
Thursday, September 7, 2023 
 

    Note: There will be a break for lunch from 12 until 1 if deemed necessary.    
 
9:00 a.m. 1. Call to Order                                Markwood 

a)  Roll Call 
b)  Approval of 9/7 Agenda 
c)  Statements of Conflicts of Interest/ethics violations  
 

 2. Public Comment (est. time only; 9:15 am) 
         

 3. Review Meeting Minutes 
a)  June 15, 2023 
b)  July 27, 20223 Teleconference 

                         
9:30 a.m.  4. Investigative Report   
   a)  Statistical Report               Gabriel 

    
11:00 a.m.  5. Old Business            Markwood  
                a)  FY 2023/2024 Strategic Plan – update       
       b) Status of Proposed Regulations         Harris  
     

6. New Business            Markwood     
     a)   Disciplinary Matrix (CE), review/update 

      b)  Trust Accounts -12 AAC 64.110 and 180 - discussion 
      c)  DCE Topics for 2024-2026 
      d)  Delegation for Executive Administrator 
      e)  ARELLO Investigator Seminar October 2023- Utah 
  f)   Election of Vice Chair & Education Liaison 
 
    7. Executive Administrator’s Report                                                         Harris 
           a)  Licensing/Education Report 

       b)  Recovery Fund Report             

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86544255113


STATE OF ALASKA 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS, BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL LICENSING 

 
Tentative Meeting Agenda 

 
REAL ESTATE COMMISSION MEETING 

September 7, 2023 
 

                       Atwood Building 550 W. 7th Ave. Suite 1550  
Anchorage, AK 

 
                    
            ZOOM Info: Join meeting: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86544255113 
 
                                     Meeting ID: 865 4425 5113   Passcode: 373430                  
                                      Call-In: +1 (669)900- 6833 or (253)215-8782  

 
 
              8. Commission Member Comments and Questions 

             
   Adjournment 

 
 
                                                REC Meeting Dates for 2023: 
                                                         December 14 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86544255113


 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Statements of Conflicts of Interest 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
 
 



















 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Public Comment  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Review of Meeting Minutes  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
 
 



 

                                                                                                     1 
STATE OF ALASKA 2 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 3 
DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS, BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL LICENSING 4 

 5 
REAL ESTATE COMMISSION 6 

MEETING MINUTES 7 
 8 

June 15, 2023 9 
 10 
 11 

“These draft minutes were prepared by the staff of the Division of Corporations, Business 12 
and Professional Licensing. They have not been reviewed or approved by the 13 
Commission.” By the authority of AS 08.01.070(2), and in compliance with the provisions 14 
of AS 44.62, Article 6, a scheduled meeting of the Real Estate Commission was held June 15 
15, 2023, Anchorage, Alaska via Zoom. 16 
  17 
Thursday, June 15, 2023 18 
Agenda Item 1 - Call to Order 19 
Chairperson Cheryl Markwood called the meeting to order at 9:05 a.m., at which time a 20 
quorum was established. 21 
 22 
Agenda Item 1(a) – Roll Call 23 
Members Present via Zoom 24 
Cheryl Markwood, Broker, Broker at Large, Chairperson 25 
Traci Heaton, Associate Broker, 1st Judicial District 26 
Devon Doran, Broker, 3rd Judicial District 27 
Elizabeth Schok, Associate Broker, 4th Judicial District 28 
 29 
Members Absent:  30 
Chad Stigen, Associate Broker, Broker at Large 31 
 32 
Staff Present: 33 
Nancy Harris, Executive Administrator, REC 34 
Kerry Givens, Project Assistant, REC 35 
Anna Gabriel, Investigator, REC/APR  36 
Marilynn Zimmerman, Paralegal, CBPL 37 
Julienne Kim, Paralegal, CBPL 38 
Renee Carabajal, Program Coordinator 2, CBPL 39 
 40 
Guests Present via Zoom:  41 
Traci Barickman, Broker, Educator, Elite Real Estate, Palmer 42 
Errol Champion, Liaison for AAR, and Broker of Coldwell Banker Race Realty, Juneau 43 
Crystal Pitt, member of the public 44 
Erika DeWeese, Salesperson, Ski to Sear Properties, Girdwood 45 
Dorian Post, Applicant, Broker, Peoples Company of Indianola, NE 46 
 47 
 48 
Agenda Item 1(b) - Approval of 6/15 Agenda  49 
Commission members reviewed the agenda as presented. 50 
 51 
Ms. Markwood added 2 items to the agenda. Under agenda item 5(a), Licensing Issues, 52 
after case #2022-001020 add case #2022-000982. Add under agenda item 9, Executive 53 
Administrator Report, as 9(c), Alaska Commission Postsecondary Education (ACPE).  54 
 55 



 
Real Estate Commission 
Meeting Minutes 
June 15, 2023  
Page 2 of 12 
There were no other additions to the agenda.  56 
 57 
 58 

 59 
No objections. Motion passed. 60 
 61 
 62 

Statements of Conflicts of Interest/Ethics Violations– 1(c) 63 
There were no conflicts of interest statements or ethics violations to report. 64 
 65 
 66 
Agenda Item 2 – Public Comments 67 
Traci Barickman, broker, and real estate educator spoke briefly to the Commission 68 
regarding Alaska Commission of Postsecondary Education (ACPE). Ms. Barickman stated 69 
that all real estate instructors will soon receive a letter from ACPE indicating they are in 70 
violation of state statutes. She said it was her misunderstanding, and probably other 71 
instructors, that they were exempt from post-secondary education. After week of research 72 
and speaking with ACPE, she found out that real estate instructors are not exempt and are 73 
subject to ACPE and required to file for an exemption. Currently they are looking for 74 
compliance. She said the purpose of her speaking today is that she wants to help her 75 
fellow instructors, if they want help, and she does not want the REC to lose control of real 76 
estate education and instructors to another state agency. The application instructors would 77 
need to complete to file an exemption is the Short Course of Study. There are other 78 
applications that may seem applicable, but they are not. She said she has completed the 79 
application and it is not as daunting as it seems.  80 
 81 
The question was asked what exactly are instructors/educators not in compliance of? Ms. 82 
Barickman said they are not in compliance with the AK Postsecondary Education statutes 83 
and regulations. Real Estate instructors and educators are considered an institution 84 
because they teach post-secondary education, no matter how, and that puts them under 85 
ACPE. She said there is a $5,000 fine for non-compliance, so she encourages anyone 86 
who receives a letter to comply. She reiterated that she would be more than happy to help 87 
anyone with the application and any questions.  88 
 89 
Errol Champion, Chair of the Legislature and Real Estate Commission Committee for AK 90 
Realtors updated the Commission on pending legislation. Mr. Champion stated that the 91 
legislation the AK Realtors are following this year was significant yet did not move forward 92 
to become law. The first bill was HB134. He stated if this bill is adopted it would modify title 93 
29 that would preclude or prevent borough, city, or state government from implementing a 94 
transfer fee on the sale of real property. AK continues to be a non-disclosure state. 95 
Several years ago, Juneau went after the disclosure of real property and tried to require a 96 
fee.  Mr. Champion said that it has been their experience and as shown and in other 97 
states, 36 states now require a transfer disclosure fee, and soon after comes more fees, 98 
taxes, or some sort of revenue for government. 99 
 100 
He said this bill was filed in anticipation that this may happen in AK, and they want to close 101 
that door before there was any effort by local government or the state to implement or levy 102 
a fee. He said he doesn’t believe there is strong objection to the bill. 103 
 104 

            On a motion made by Schok, seconded by Doran, it was, 
 

Resolved to approve the June 15, 2023, meeting agenda as amended. 



 
Real Estate Commission 
Meeting Minutes 
June 15, 2023  
Page 3 of 12 
The second bill was HB 184. This bill is an effort to approve the ability of short-term 105 
housing. This bill, if adopted, would require the registration of any entity that is involved in 106 
short term rentals. There has even been some attempt that an entity couldn’t own more 107 
than 2 short term rentals. He said he believed there is not a lot of support for this bill. If it 108 
was adopted, it would be difficult to monitor. 109 
 110 
Ms. Markwood asked Mr. Champion what is the industry’s thoughts regarding Airbnb’s? 111 
Has it been brought to their attention and do they have any position on it?  112 
 113 
Mr. Champion said they have not taken an official action or position on that issue, but the 114 
conversation has always been let the marketplace function. Trying to supervise it or put 115 
some kind of controls on it, is not something they are going to support. It has just been a 116 
conversation, but no formal action has been taken. He hears that it is coming, at least in 117 
some state. The talk here is more of a source of revenue. Airbnb’s and short-term rentals 118 
were not subject to motel and hotel bed taxes, so communities are losing a lot of revenue. 119 
The general mood in the state is that we do not need more taxes or cost to do business. 120 
He said nothing is going on currently and they will certainly oppose it. Until they see 121 
something formally advance, they are not going to initiate a conversation.  122 
 123 
 124 
Agenda Item 3 – Review of Meeting Minutes 125 
Agenda Item 3(a) – February 9, 2023 126 

 127 
 On a motion made by Heaton, seconded by Doran, it was, 128 
 129 

Resolved to approve the February 9, 2023, meeting minutes as 130 
presented. 131 
 132 

No objections: Motion passed. 133 
 134 
 135 
Agenda Item 4 – Investigative Report 136 
Statistical– 4(a) 137 
Anna Gabriel, REC Investigator, presented the investigation statistics report to the 138 
Commission. She presented the investigative report for the reporting period of January 25, 139 
2023, through May 30, 2023. She stated there are 48 cases opened, 29 cases were 140 
closed, and 6 new cases received from the last report.  141 
 142 
Marilynn Zimmerman, paralegal for the CBPL joined the meeting at 9:30 am. 143 
 144 
License Action – 4(b) Consent Agreement 2022-000970 145 
Commission members went into executive session to discuss the consent agreement and 146 
licensing issues from agenda item 5. 147 
 148 

On a motion duly made by Heaton, seconded by Doran, it was, 149 
 150 

Resolved to go into executive session in accordance with the 151 
provisions of AK Statute 44.62.310(c), for the purpose of discussing 152 
subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any 153 
person, provided the person may request a public discussion. 154 



 
Real Estate Commission 
Meeting Minutes 
June 15, 2023  
Page 4 of 12 

 155 
All in favor; Motion passed. 156 

 157 
 158 

Commission went into executive session at 9:32 am. 159 
Out of executive session at 11:17 am 160 
 161 
 162 
Agenda Item 5 –Licensing Issues 163 
Education Audit Issues – 5(a) 164 
 165 
Case No. 2022-000980 166 
 167 
 On a motion made by Doran, seconded by Heaton, it was, 168 
 169 

Resolved to approve the consent agreement in Case No. 2022-000980. 170 
 171 
Roll call vote: Doran-yes, Heaton- yes, Schok- yes, Markwood- yes, Stigen- 172 
absent. 173 
. 174 
 175 

The Consent Agreement was adopted by the Commission in Case No. 2022-000980.  176 
 177 
 178 
Case No. 2022-000983  179 
 180 
 181 
On a motion made by Doran, seconded by Heaton, it was, 182 
 183 

Resolved to approve the consent agreement in Case No. 2022-000983. 184 
 185 
Roll call vote: Doran-yes, Heaton- yes, Schok- yes, Markwood- yes, Stigen- 186 
absent. 187 
. 188 

 189 
The Consent Agreement was adopted by the Commission in Case No.2022-000983.  190 
 191 
 192 
Case No. 2022-000984 193 
 194 
 On a motion made by Doran, seconded by Schok, it was, 195 
 196 

Resolved to approve the consent agreement in Case No. 2022-000984. 197 
 198 
Roll call vote: Doran-yes, Heaton- yes, Schok- yes, Markwood- yes, Stigen- 199 
absent. 200 

 201 
The Consent Agreement was adopted by the Commission in Case No. 2022-000984.  202 
 203 
 204 
Case No. 2022-001020 205 



 
Real Estate Commission 
Meeting Minutes 
June 15, 2023  
Page 5 of 12 
 206 
 207 
 On a motion made by Doran, seconded by Schok, it was, 208 
 209 

Resolved to approve the consent agreement in Case No. 2022-001020. 210 
 211 
Roll call vote: Doran-yes, Heaton- yes, Schok- yes, Markwood- yes, Stigen- 212 
absent. 213 
. 214 

 215 
The Consent Agreement was adopted by the Commission in Case No. 2022-001020.  216 
  217 
 218 
Case No. 2022-000982 219 
 220 
 On a motion made by Doran, seconded by Heaton, it was, 221 
 222 

Resolved to approve the consent agreement in Case No. 2022-000982. 223 
 224 
Roll call vote: Doran-yes, Heaton- yes, Schok- yes, Markwood- yes, Stigen- 225 
absent. 226 
 227 

 228 
The Consent Agreement was adopted by the Commission in Case No. 2022-000982.  229 
 230 
 231 
Default Revocations – 5(b) 232 
Case No. 2022-000854 233 
 234 
 On a motion made by Doran, seconded by Schok, it was, 235 
 236 

Resolved to approve and adopt the Order of Default Revocation of the 237 
salesperson license for Case No. 2022-000854. 238 
 239 

Roll call vote: Doran-yes, Heaton- yes, Schok- yes, Markwood- yes. 240 
 241 
The Default Revocation was adopted by the Commission in Case No. 2022-000854.  242 
 243 
 244 
Case No. 2022-000989 245 
 246 
 On a motion made by Doran, seconded by Heaton, it was, 247 
 248 

Resolved to approve and adopt the Order of Default Revocation of the 249 
salesperson license for Case No. 2022-000989. 250 

 251 
Roll call vote: Doran-yes, Heaton- yes, Schok- yes, Markwood- yes. 252 

 253 
The Default Revocation was adopted by the Commission in Case No. 2022-000989. 254 
 255 
Initial Applications – 5(c)-  256 



 
Real Estate Commission 
Meeting Minutes 
June 15, 2023  
Page 6 of 12 
Broker by Endorsement, License #188507 257 
 258 
 On a motion made by Doran, seconded by Schok, it was, 259 
 260 

Resolved to deny the broker by endorsement application for Doran 261 
Post, proposed license #188507, for failure to disclose prior 262 
disciplinary actions in another state as stated by 12 AAC 64.160 and 263 
further supported by AS 88.88.401.  264 
 265 

Roll call vote: Doran-yes, Heaton- yes, Schok- yes, Markwood- yes. 266 
 267 
The Broker application by endorsement for Doran Post was denied.   268 
 269 
 270 
Consent Agreement 2022-000970 271 
 272 
 273 
 On a motion made by Doran, seconded by Schok, it was, 274 
 275 

Resolved to deny the consent agreement for Case No. 2022-000970. 276 
 277 
Roll call vote: Doran-yes, Heaton- yes, Schok- yes, Markwood- yes. 278 

 279 
The Consent Agreement was denied by the Commission in Case No. 2022-000970.  280 
 281 
 282 
Salesperson by Exam- 283 
License #207026 284 
 285 
 On a motion made by Doran, seconded by Heaton, it was, 286 
 287 

Resolved to deny the salesperson application for Amy Sirmans, 288 
proposed license #207026, as supported by AS 08.88.171(c), as seven 289 
years has not passed since a felony conviction.  290 

 291 
Roll call vote: Doran-yes, Heaton- yes, Schok- yes, Markwood- yes. 292 

 293 
The salesperson application for Amy Sirmans was denied.   294 
 295 
 296 
License #208150 297 
 298 
 On a motion made by Doran, seconded by Schok, it was, 299 
 300 

Resolved to deny the salesperson application for Sean Sullivan, 301 
proposed license #208150, as supported by AS 08.88.171(c), as seven 302 
years has not passed since the person has completed of the sentence 303 
imposed upon conviction.  304 
 305 

Roll call vote: Doran-yes, Heaton- yes, Schok- yes, Markwood- yes. 306 



 
Real Estate Commission 
Meeting Minutes 
June 15, 2023  
Page 7 of 12 
 307 
The Salesperson application by examination for Sean Sullivan was denied.   308 
 309 

 310 
Agenda Item 6 – Division Update 311 
Revenue/Expenditure Report, FY23/3rd Qtr. – 6(b) 312 
Renee Carabajal, Program Coordinator 2, CBPL for the Division of Corporations, 313 
Business, and Professional Licensing, presented to the Commission the Revenue and 314 
Expenditures report for the FY2023 3rd quarter.  She stated the current revenue was 315 
$184,220. There were non-investigative expenditures of $129,527 and investigative 316 
expenditures of $165,810, for a total of $295,337 direct expenditures. There were in- direct 317 
expenditures of $140,842 (this includes internal administration, department, and statewide 318 
costs), leaving the total expenditures at $436,179. There was a total ending cumulative 319 
surplus of $1,068,446.  320 
 321 
 322 
Agenda Item 7 – Old Business  323 
2023/2024 Strategic Plan – 7(a) 324 
Commission members reviewed, discussed, and made changes to the 2023 Strategic 325 
Plan. The Commission members agreed to removed items from strategic plan with a 326 
revision 5/31/23: items #1, 2, 4-6, 8-10, 12, Add: review and revise 12 AAC 64.064, 327 
information for payment of Commission through Title Company, to review and determine 328 
DCE topics for 2024-2026 licensing period, DCE guidelines for DCE topics for 2024-2026, 329 
fee adjustment 2024 -2026 licensing period, and review and make recommendations re: 330 
Airbnb questions.  331 
 332 
The Commission discussed Airbnb and how the Commission may address this topic in the 333 
future. They asked that staff gather questions to take to the Department of Law regarding 334 
Airbnb to bring to the Commission for discussion at a future meeting.  335 
 336 
Property Management Committee update – 7(b) 337 
Ms. Markwood asked the Commission to dismantle the Property Management Committee 338 
(PMC). She stated that the PMC has completed the goals that were set for them. The 339 
committee did several best practices and white papers that have been placed on the REC 340 
website for direction and help with questions many property managers and the public had. 341 
Ms. Markwood stated that the committee’s Chair did a great job, but it has been dormant 342 
for at least six months, and she believes it is time for it to be dismantled. She said if there 343 
are issues that need to be addressed with regards to property management in the future, a 344 
new committee can be formed. 345 
 346 
There were no objections from the other Commission members. The Property 347 
Management Committee was dismantled.  348 
 349 
The Commission recessed for break at 12:20 a.m. 350 
The Commission reconvened at 12:31 a.m.  351 
 352 
Discuss status/goal of REC Consumer Disclosure form - 7(c) 353 
The Commission reviewed and discussed the REC Consumer Disclosure form that 354 
Commission member Schok and Heaton worked on and made revisions. They made 355 



 
Real Estate Commission 
Meeting Minutes 
June 15, 2023  
Page 8 of 12 
revisions and reformatted the Consumer Disclosure and created a second page and made 356 
formatting changes only to the Waiver of Right of Representation form. 357 
 358 
Ms. Markwood clarified that this would replace the current Consumer Disclosure 359 
information page with a one-page Consumer Disclosure with an Addendum if more than 360 
one licensee is involved.  361 
 362 
Ms. Heaton went over some of the items that were changed: a single page Consumer 363 
Disclosure form unless there is more than one licensee involved, specifically mark the 364 
bottom of page 1 so you know there is a second page if more than one licensee is 365 
involved ( you know if there or is not an Addendum), there is a place for a team name if a 366 
team is involved, and the Waiver of Right to be Represented was only reformatted so it 367 
looks similar to the Consumer Disclosure.  368 
 369 
Commission changes to 08-4145 AREC Consumer Disclosure 370 
1) Header be smaller or take out 1-2 lines such as phone, email, or website. 371 
2)  Under Specific Assistance box adding: 372 
NOTE: If the consumer transitions to Representation, the relationship CANNOT revert to 373 
Specific Assistance. 374 
3)  Adding in another sentence at the end of Acknowledgement.  For full description of 375 
Licensee Relations refer to Sec 08.88.600-695. 376 
4) On page two for the disclosure addendum adding in two more lines for additional 377 
licensees.  378 
5) after the 2nd sentence in Teams box add definition of teams.  379 
 380 
There were no changes to for 08-4212 AREC Waiver of Right to be Represented.  381 
 382 
 383 
On a motion made by Schok, seconded by Heaton, it was, 384 
 385 

Resolved to move forward regulations 12 AAC 64.118, Consumer 386 
Disclosure form and 12 AAC 64.119 the Waiver of Right to be 387 
Represented as revised to the regulation’s specialist, and out for 388 
public comment accepting written comments only, and out for 30 389 
days.   390 

 391 
 All in favor. No objections: Motion passed.  392 
 393 
 394 
SOA Residential Real Property Disclosure Transfer Statement - 7(d)) 395 
Commission members review and discuss the conflict of the definition of residential real 396 
property found on the Residential Real Property Transfer Disclosure Statement and AS 397 
34.80.090. 398 
 399 
It has come to the attention of the Commission that there is a discrepancy in the definition 400 
of “residential real property” in the Alaska statute, Title 34, Property.  The State of Alaska 401 
Residential Real Property Transfer Disclosure Statement form, #08-4229, that is required 402 
for disclosure when selling a home includes the definition of residential property as a 403 
“single- family dwelling or two single-family dwellings in one building” cited in AS 404 
34.70.200(3). However, residential real property is defined differently in AS 34.80.090(6) 405 



 
Real Estate Commission 
Meeting Minutes 
June 15, 2023  
Page 9 of 12 
as “one to four attached or detached dwelling units or any number of units if the units are 406 
in a common interest community created under AS 34.80.090”.  407 
 408 
Ms. Harris stated that the Commission can make a statutory change to fix the discrepancy 409 
in the definition of “residential real property” found in AS 34.70 and 34.80 or they can do a 410 
regulation change to 12 AAC 64.930 and add a section (b) to include the conflicting 411 
definition of residential real property as outlined in AS 34.80.090 so that it covers both 412 
definitions.   413 
 414 
The Commission would like to do a revise regulation 12 AAC 64.930, Property Disclosure 415 
Form, by adding to section (b), after AS 34.70.200, “and AS 34.80.90. 416 
 417 
 418 
On a motion made by Doran, seconded by Schok, it was, 419 
 420 

Resolved to move forward regulation 12 AAC 64.930, Property 421 
Disclosure form, as revised to the regulation’s specialist, and out for 422 
public comment accepting written comments only, and out for 30 423 
days.   424 

 425 
 No objections: Motion passed.  426 
 427 
  428 
Board Committees vs. Subcommittee vs. Workgroups- 7(e) 429 
Ms. Harris spoke to the latest information sheet with regards to Board Committees vs 430 
Subcommittees vs Workgroups. The bottom line is that it is best that all meetings be public 431 
noticed.  432 
 433 
Subcommittees of the board –  434 
-Are comprised exclusively of board members.  435 
-Must be publicly notices in the same manner as a board meeting. 436 
 437 
Committees of the board –  438 
-Are comprised exclusively of board members.  439 
-Must be publicly notices in the same manner as a board meeting. 440 
 441 
Workgroups of the board –  442 
-May include public members. 443 
-Does not require public notice unless two or more members are serving on the 444 
workgroup. 445 
-May be publicly noticed if public comment is solicited or if the group desires a highly 446 
transparent process; best to post on the board’s web page. 447 
 448 
Ms. Harris stated the bottom line is that all committee, subcommittee, or workgroups need 449 
to be public noticed.  450 
 451 
 452 
Agenda Item 8 – New Business 453 
2023 Annual Report– 8(a) 454 
Commission members reviewed and discussed the 2023 REC Annual Report and made 455 
several changes.  456 



 
Real Estate Commission 
Meeting Minutes 
June 15, 2023  
Page 10 of 12 
 457 
 458 
 On a motion made by Doran, seconded by Schok, it was, 459 
 460 

Resolved to approve the 2023 Annual Report as amended.  461 
 462 
 No objections: Motion passed.  463 
 464 
 465 
PearsonVue Test Development - update– 8(b) 466 
Ms. Harris gave the Commission an update on test development with the testing service 467 
PearsonVue during the end of May. She said several AK educators are selected to assist 468 
PearsonVue with test development to review exam information to ensure the exam is 469 
relevant and up to date. Ms. Harris said it was good time spent and she appreciated all the 470 
educators’ time and hard work. 471 
 472 
2023 ARELLO Annual Conference, Montreal, QC Canada, September 18-22,2023 – 8(c) 473 
Ms. Harris asked the Commission for their approval for her to attend the 2023 ARELLO 474 
Conference on September 18-22, 2023, in Montreal QC Canada. 475 
 476 
 477 
 On a motion made by Heaton, seconded by Schok, it was, 478 
 479 

Resolved to approve for Ms. Harris to attend the 2023 ARELLO 480 
conference in Montreal QC Canada. 481 
 482 

No objections: Motion passed.  483 
 484 

 485 
Agenda Item 9 – Executive Administrator’s Report 486 
Licensing/Education Report/ Statistics – 9(a) 487 
Mr. Givens presented the licensing report for June 15, 2023, to the Commission.   He 488 
reported that between February 10, 2023, through May 31, 2023, there were 87 new 489 
licenses issued; 3,025 active licensees, 3252 total number of licensees with an 1/31/2024 490 
expiration date; 58 inactive licensees with a 1/31/2024 expiration date; 45 lapsed licenses 491 
due to  non-compliance of PLE; 92 transfers; 82 licensees completed their PLE 492 
requirements;13 license upgrades from salesperson to associate broker and 1 license 493 
upgrade from salesperson to broker and 121 licensees in a license returned status. 494 
 495 
Education Statistics  496 
Mr. Givens presented the education report for June 15, 2023. He reported that as of May 497 
31, 2023, there were 11 pre-licensing courses; 4 broker upgrade courses; 395 elective 498 
courses (ECE) and 100 designated courses (DCE), the elective (ECE) and designated 499 
(DCE) courses have some overlap, so the initial numbers 395 and 100 accordingly, are 500 
adjusted by the combined DCE and ECE with a reduction of 28, and 62, and 77 Post 501 
Licensing course. with a total of 497 approved courses.  There are 95 permanent 502 
instructors and 3 new instructors, 2 from Eagle River and one from Florida.  503 
 504 
Recovery Fund Balance Report – 9(b) 505 
Ms. Harris presented the Recovery Fund Report for the 3rd quarter, ending March 31, 506 
2023. The Commission received a total of $12,630 mostly from license fees processed 507 



 
Real Estate Commission 
Meeting Minutes 
June 15, 2023  
Page 11 of 12 
between January and March 31, with total revenues of $16,212 and expenditures at 508 
$24,248. The current fund balance was $330,291 with an end of year fund balance of 509 
$322,255. The projected balance for the end of the fiscal year is $329,830. 510 
 511 
Alaska Commission on Postsecondary Education – 9(c) 512 
Ms. Harris spoke to the Commission regarding AK Commission on Postsecondary 513 
Education (ACPE). She said it had come to her attention that all real estate 514 
instructors/educators will be required to apply for an exemption from institutional 515 
authorization through Alaska Postsecondary Education (ACPE) and will receive an email 516 
and letter regarding compliance. She wanted the Commission to be aware of this and 517 
asked for approval to send a list serv out to notify the instructors/educators of this 518 
requirement.   519 
 520 
Staff to send a listserv and email to education sponsors regarding ACPE letter and 521 
compliance.  522 
 523 
 524 
Agenda Item 10 – Commission Member Comments & Questions 525 
Ms. Heaton stated that the September REC meeting is at the same time as the Realtor 526 
convention and asked if the date could be changed. Ms. Heaton said she was excited that 527 
the consumer disclosure was well received, and she was looking forward to the public 528 
comments and hopes there will be a good response. 529 
 530 
Commission members changed the September meeting date from September 14, 2023, to 531 
September 7, 2023, to allow the Commission members to attend the realtor convention.  532 
 533 
Devon Doran thanked the Commissioners for their hard work. 534 
 535 
Ms. Schok said it was great to work with Traci Heaton on the consumer disclosure, she did 536 
a beautiful job, and she also hopes the revisions to the Consumer Disclosure will be well 537 
received. She thanked everyone for all their hard work.  538 
 539 
Ms. Markwood thanked everyone for all their hard work on the Commission today and 540 
thanked everyone on all their input and hard work that was done on the Consumer 541 
Disclosure form. It was an amazing job!  She said she appreciated everyone’s hard work 542 
on the Commission dealing with big caseloads with investigations, as well as their regular 543 
jobs. She appreciated the collaboration and being able to talk and work through the 544 
issues. She said she is looking forward to reviewing the matrix at the next meeting and 545 
loves how the Commission is trying to streamline things. When we are no longer on the 546 
Commission, the people that will follow behind them will have a more streamed line way of 547 
handling the business affairs of the Commission, which is important.  548 
 549 
 550 
Agenda Item 11 – Adjournment  551 
 552 
 On a motion made by Schok, seconded by Doran, it was, 553 
 554 

Resolved to adjourn the meeting.  555 
 556 

No objections: Motion passed. 557 
 558 
 559 



 
Real Estate Commission 
Meeting Minutes 
June 15, 2023  
Page 12 of 12 
Meeting adjourned at 1:43 pm.  560 
 561 
The next meeting will be held September 7, 2023, in person. 562 

 563 
 564 
Prepared and submitted by: 565 
Real Estate Commission Staff 566 
 567 
Approved: 568 
 569 
 570 
______________________________ 571 
Cheryl Markwood 572 
REC Chairperson 573 
Alaska Real Estate Commission 574 



 

                                                                                                     1 
STATE OF ALASKA 2 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 3 
DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS, BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL LICENSING 4 

 5 
REAL ESTATE COMMISSION 6 

MEETING MINUTES 7 
Teleconference 8 

 9 
July 27, 2023 10 

 11 
 12 

“These draft minutes were prepared by the staff of the Division of Corporations, Business 13 
and Professional Licensing. They have not been reviewed or approved by the 14 
Commission.” By the authority of AS 08.01.070(2), and in compliance with the provisions 15 
of AS 44.62, Article 6, a scheduled meeting of the Real Estate Commission was held July 16 
27,2023, Anchorage, Alaska via Zoom. 17 
  18 
Thursday, July 27, 2023 19 
Agenda Item 1 - Call to Order 20 
Chairperson Cheryl Markwood called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m., at which time a 21 
quorum was established. 22 
 23 
Agenda Item 1(a) – Roll Call 24 
Members Present via Zoom 25 
Cheryl Markwood, Broker, Broker at Large, Chairperson 26 
Traci Heaton, Associate Broker, 1st Judicial District 27 
Devon Doran, Broker, 3rd Judicial District 28 
Elizabeth Schok, Associate Broker, 4th Judicial District 29 
Chad Stigen, Associate Broker, Broker at Large 30 
 31 
Staff Present: 32 
Nancy Harris, Executive Administrator, REC 33 
Kerry Givens, Project Assistant, REC 34 
Anna Gabriel, Investigator, REC/APR  35 
 36 
Guests Present via Zoom:  37 
No guests present. 38 
 39 
Agenda Item 1(b) - Approval of 7/27 Agenda  40 
Commission members reviewed the agenda as presented. 41 
 42 

 43 
No objections. Motion passed. 44 
 45 
 46 

Statements of Conflicts of Interest/Ethics Violations– 1(c) 47 
There were no conflicts of interest statements or ethics violations to report. 48 
 49 
 50 
Agenda Item 2 – Public Comments 51 

            On a motion made by Schok, seconded by Doran, it was, 
 

Resolved to approve the July 27, 2023, meeting agenda as presented. 



 
Real Estate Commission 
Teleconference - 
Meeting Minutes 
July 27, 2023  
Page 2 of 2 
 There were no public comments. 52 
 53 
Agenda Item 3 – Reconsideration of Consent Agreement and  54 
License Application of D. Post 55 
 56 
The Commission went into executive session to discuss the consent agreement and 57 
license application of Doran Post.  58 
 59 

On a motion duly made by Heaton, seconded by Schok, it was, 60 
 61 

Resolved to go into executive session in accordance with the 62 
provisions of AK Statute 44.62.310(c), for the purpose of discussing 63 
subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any 64 
person, provided the person may request a public discussion. 65 

 66 
Roll call vote: Doran-yes, Heaton- yes, Schok- yes, Stigen- yes, Markwood- yes. 67 
 68 

Commission went into executive session at 10:10 am. 69 
Out of executive session at 10:15 am 70 
 71 
The Commission did not reconsider the Consent Agreement or License Application of 72 
Doran Post.  73 
 74 
Agenda Item 11 – Adjournment  75 
 76 
 77 
 On a motion made by Schok, seconded by Heaton was, 78 
 79 

Resolved to adjourn the meeting.  80 
 81 

No objections: Motion passed. 82 
 83 
 84 
Meeting adjourned at 10:18 am.  85 
 86 

 87 
 88 
Prepared and submitted by: 89 
Real Estate Commission Staff 90 
 91 
Approved: 92 
 93 
 94 
______________________________ 95 
Cheryl Markwood 96 
REC Chairperson 97 
Alaska Real Estate Commission 98 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Investigative Report 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
 
 



Department of Commerce, Community,
and Economic Development

DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS, BUSINESS AND
PROFESSIONAL LICENSING

550 West Seventh Avenue, Suite 1500
Anchorage, AK 99501-3567

Main: 907.269.8160
Fax: 907.269.8156

MEMORANDUM

DATE:

TO:

THRU:

FROM:

RE:

August 22, 2023

Real Estate Commission

Erika Prieksat, Chief Investigator

Anna Gabriel, Investigator

Investigative Report for the September 07, 2023 Meeting

The following information was compiled as an investigative report to the Board for the period of May 31, 2023 thru 
August 22, 2023; this report includes cases, complaints, and intake matters handled since the last report.

Matters opened by the Paralegals in Anchorage and Juneau, regarding continuing education audits and license action 
resulting from those matters are covered in this report.

OPEN - 56

Case Number Violation Type Case Status Status Date

REAL ESTATE ASSOCIATE 
BROKER

2023-000762 Violation of licensing regulation Intake 07/17/2023

2023-000789 Violation of licensing regulation Intake 07/17/2023

2023-000800 Violation of licensing regulation Intake 07/24/2023

2021-000465 Violation of licensing regulation Complaint 06/03/2021

2022-000445 Violation of licensing regulation Complaint 05/18/2022

2022-001045 Violation of licensing regulation Complaint 10/24/2022

2022-001078 Violation of licensing regulation Complaint 11/07/2022

2022-001082 Violation of licensing regulation Complaint 11/08/2022

2021-000231 Advertising Investigation 03/08/2023



REAL ESTATE BROKER

2023-000857 Violation of licensing regulation Intake 08/03/2023

2023-000886 Violation of licensing regulation Intake 08/11/2023

2020-000224 Criminal action - no conviction Complaint 04/09/2020

2021-000772 Violation of licensing regulation Complaint 08/26/2021

2021-001096 Violation of licensing regulation Complaint 12/15/2021

2022-000087 Unlicensed practice or activity Complaint 09/30/2021

2022-000468 Violation of licensing regulation Complaint 05/24/2022

2022-000900 Violation of licensing regulation Complaint 09/28/2022

2022-000975 Violation of licensing regulation Complaint 10/06/2022

2022-001067 Continuing education Complaint 10/26/2022

2023-000012 Violation of licensing regulation Complaint 01/10/2023

2023-000278 Violation of licensing regulation Complaint 04/11/2023

2023-000860 Violation of licensing regulation Complaint 08/07/2023

2021-000185 Violation of licensing regulation Investigation 03/08/2023

2021-000286 Violation of licensing regulation Investigation 03/08/2023

2022-000970 Falsified application Investigation 02/21/2023

2021-000267 Violation of licensing regulation Litigation Initiated 09/16/2022

REAL ESTATE SALESPERSON

2023-000790 Unlicensed practice or activity Intake 07/19/2023

2023-000801 Violation of licensing regulation Intake 07/21/2023

2023-000818 Violation of licensing regulation Intake 07/31/2023

2023-000858 Violation of licensing regulation Intake 08/08/2023

2023-000904 Violation of licensing regulation Intake 08/18/2023

2022-000051 Violation of licensing regulation Complaint 01/19/2022

2022-000394 Violation of licensing regulation Complaint 04/27/2022

2022-000473 Violation of licensing regulation Complaint 06/08/2022

2022-000719 Violation of licensing regulation Complaint 08/16/2022

2022-000732 Violation of licensing regulation Complaint 08/04/2022

2022-000921 Violation of licensing regulation Complaint 09/27/2022

Investigative Report to Real Estate Commission
August 22, 2023
Page 2



Closed - 14
Case # Violation Type Case Status ClosureClosed

2022-001076 Violation of licensing regulation Complaint 11/07/2022

2022-001077 Violation of licensing regulation Complaint 11/07/2022

2022-001171 Violation of licensing regulation Complaint 12/14/2022

2023-000274 Violation of licensing regulation Complaint 04/21/2023

2023-000277 Violation of licensing regulation Complaint 04/07/2023

2023-000603 Violation of licensing regulation Complaint 06/19/2023

2023-000649 Violation of licensing regulation Complaint 07/17/2023

2023-000699 Violation of licensing regulation Complaint 07/24/2023

2023-000722 Violation of licensing regulation Complaint 07/26/2023

2023-000757 Violation of licensing regulation Complaint 08/08/2023

2023-000836 Violation of licensing regulation Complaint 08/10/2023

2023-000309 License application problem Monitor

2020-000015 Fraud or misrepresentation Investigation 06/15/2020

2020-000077 Fraud or misrepresentation Investigation 06/11/2020

2021-000183 Violation of licensing regulation Investigation 03/08/2023

2021-000269 License application problem Investigation 03/08/2023

2021-000519 Fraud or misrepresentation Investigation 02/17/2022

2022-000254 Violation of licensing regulation Investigation 03/28/2023

2022-000981 Continuing education Investigation 02/17/2023

2023-000551 Violation of licensing 
regulation

Closed-Intake 07/18/2023 Incomplete Complaint

2023-000688 Violation of licensing 
regulation

Closed-Intake 07/31/2023 Incomplete Complaint

2023-000732 Violation of licensing 
regulation

Closed-Intake 08/17/2023 Incomplete Complaint

REAL ESTATE BROKER

2023-000447 Violation of licensing 
regulation

Closed-Intake 06/22/2023 Incomplete Complaint

2023-000632 Violation of licensing 
regulation

Closed-Intake 07/17/2023 Incomplete Complaint

REAL ESTATE SALESPERSON

Investigative Report to Real Estate Commission
August 22, 2023
Page 3



END OF REPORT

2021-000635 Real estate - other Closed-Complaint 07/31/2023 No Action - No 
Violation

2022-000849 Continuing education Closed-Complaint 06/28/2023 No Action - No 
Violation

2022-000854 Continuing education Closed-Investigation 08/01/2023 License Action

2022-000980 Continuing education Closed-Investigation 06/19/2023 License Action

2022-000982 Continuing education Closed-Investigation 06/28/2023 License Action

2022-000983 Continuing education Closed-Investigation 06/20/2023 License Action

2022-000984 Continuing education Closed-Investigation 06/20/2023 License Action

2022-000989 Continuing education Closed-Investigation 08/01/2023 License Action

2022-001020 Continuing education Closed-Investigation 06/20/2023 License Action

Investigative Report to Real Estate Commission
August 22, 2023
Page 4



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Old Business 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
 
 



2024 ALASKA REAL ESTATE COMMISSION STRATEGIC PLAN 
The Commission recognizes we have a very small, yet extremely competent staff for the number of licensees we oversee, 

and to assist affected consumers. We have every confidence that the Executive Administrator, Project Assistant, and 
REC Investigator will all support us in reaching our goals. 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 
 

 
Guiding Principle 

 
Objective 

How will we meet this guiding principle? 

 
Who will complete this 

task? 

 
Status/Notes 

 
1. Protect the 

Consumer/Inform 
Licensee 

Define minimum standards, based on what other 
jurisdictions have successfully implemented, for team 
advertising. To include: 

• Define requirements to 
include brokerage 
information, minimum 
size, etc. 

• Review, make recommendations if 
necessary, and provide a draft Disclosure 
Statement regarding teams 

• Review, make recommendations, if necessary, 
and draft 
regulation changes 

Expand the scope to include team educations, 
advertising, supervision, brokers role, and consumer 
protection. 
Provide a FAQ’s (Frequently Asked Questions) to be 
approved by the Commission and then placed on our 
website. 

Commission Schok & Heaton 
to provide information to staff 

Previous Commission 
completed best practice 
document for Advertising 
approved and on website.  
 
Reviewed and created Best 
Practices to include FAQ 
document. Approved by 
Commission at March 2022 
meeting and placed on REC 
website under Team 
Resources.  

2. Protect the 
Consumer/Inform 
Licensees  

Teams on Consumer Disclosure  
Propose changes to the regulation 12 AAC 64.118,       
Consumer Disclosure with regards to teams. 

Commission Schok & Heaton 
to provide information to staff 

In progress, Commission 
took no action on revised 
form at 12/9/22. Discussed 
and approved new revised 
form at 6/15/23 meeting to 
go out for public comment. 

3. Commission 
Business/Inform 
Licensees 

To review and revise 12 AAC 64.064 (g). Education 
requirements after initial licensure regarding 
broker/associate broker completion of post licensing 
education. 

Commissioner Doran and 
Committee 

In progress, Commissioner 
Duran volunteered to work 
on revisions, will bring to 
Commission to discuss a 
REC meeting. 

4.    Commission  
       Business/Inform  
         Licensees 

Payment of commissions/EM through title company’s Commissioners & Staff  

5.    Commission  
       Business/Inform 
       Licensees 

Review and make recommendations regarding DCE 
Education Topics for the next licensing period 2024-
2026 (notification to sponsors no later than October of 
odd numbered years (2023) of DCE topics for next 
renewal period.  

Commissioners & Staff  

6.   Commission  
      Business/Inform    
      Educators 

Create guidelines for DCE topics for licensing period 
2024-2026 

Commissioners & Staff  

7.   Commission  
      Business/Inform  
      Licensees 

Through the Department, review upcoming licensing 
renewal cycle fee adjustment, as to conform with the 
recovery fund balance for 2024-2026 

Commissioners & Staff  



2024 ALASKA REAL ESTATE COMMISSION STRATEGIC PLAN 
The Commission recognizes we have a very small, yet extremely competent staff for the number of licensees we oversee, 

and to assist affected consumers. We have every confidence that the Executive Administrator, Project Assistant, and 
REC Investigator will all support us in reaching our goals. 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Guiding Principle 

 
Objective 

How will we meet this guiding principle? 

 
Who will complete this 

task? 

 
Status/Notes 

 

8.  Protect the  
     Consumer/Inform  
     Licensee 

Review and make recommendation regarding 
Airbnb’s.  
Do Airbnb’s fall under the jurisdiction of the 
REC and real estate licensee law? 
What license is required to have or manage an 
Airbnb? 
What if someone else is managing an Airbnb? 
What if a licensee is managing an Airbnb for 
someone else? 
What is the responsibility of a Broker if a 
licensee has an Airbnb business? 
If Airbnb’s don’t fall under Landlord Tenant 
law, is this something the Commission needs to 
regulate or be concerned about? 
Do Airbnb’s fall under Property Management? 

  

 
 
 
 

Last Edited 8/22/23 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Status of Proposed Regulations   
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
 
 



REGULATION ADOPTION PROCESS 

1 
Planning and decision 

making 

2 
Board and Regulations 

Specialist work together to 
develop draft regulations - 
may consult with agency 

attorney.    

3 
Board motions to go to 
Public Notice subject to 
Dept of Law review and 

approval.

Steps in the 
Regulation  

Process 

4 
Department of Law Open 
File. Preliminary Review 

of draft regulations - 
approve for public notice.

5 
Agency publishes and 

distributes public notice;  
posts public notice on Alaska 
Online Public Notice System;  

notice to interested parties 
and licensees (if applicable). 

6 
Public comment period; 

oral hearing 
 (if any) 

 7
Board action - adopt as is, 
as amended or withdraw 
regulations. Significant 

changes need new public 
notice subject to DOL 
review and approval.

8 
Submit adopted regulation 
package to Department of 
Law for final review and 
approval by Regulations 

Attorney and Agency 
Attorney. 

9 
Unless there are  substantive 

changes to the regulations 
since preliminary review, 
Dept. of Law will approve 

for filing. 

10 
Dept of Law submit re-
keyed final regulations 
to Office of Lt. Gov. to 

be filed.

11 
Unless returned by the 

governor, Lt. governor's 
office files approves 

regulation; effective in 30 
days 

12 
Agency posts summary 
on Alaska Online Public 

Notice System 

Regulation published in 
Alaska Administrative 

Code 

6 - If the board wants to take oral 
comments, it must be public 
noticed with the written notice. No 
oral comments may be taken at a 
meeting during or after the public 
comment period unless noticed.

2 - Consultation with the 
agency attorney would 
occur if the board would 
like assistance with a 
difficult or controversial 
subject, otherwise it's not 
usually necessary.

4- It is at this point that
the attorney may contact
the Reg Spec for more
information, clarification,
or changes that would
need to be made.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

New Business 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
 
 



REAL ESTATE COMMISSION DISCIPLINARY SANCTIONS MATRIX 
 

(Rev. 3/2021)                         Page 1 of 7 

 
* should be used sparingly & reserved for serious/repeat offender type situations 
 

Category Type of 
License 
Affected 

Description of Violation Authority Disciplinary Sanctions 

Advertising 
 

Broker 
Associate Broker 
Salesperson 

Making, authorizing, directing, or aiding in 
the publication, distribution, or circulation 
of a false statement or misrepresentation 
concerning the licensee’s business or real 
estate offered for sale, rent, or lease or 
concerning an association being managed 
 
Failure to maintain a sign at the offices 
registered with the Commission  
 
Failure to include brokerage name in any 
form of advertisement 
 
Advertising a home office or a 
business/office name that is not registered 
with the Commission 

AS 08.88.071(a)(3)(D); 
AS 08.88.291(a); 
AS 08.88.301; 
AS 08.88.311(b); 
AS 08.88.381; 
AS 08.88.401(c); 
12 AAC 64.110;  
12 AAC 64.112;  
12 AAC 64.120; 
12 AAC 64.127; 
12 AAC 64.128(c); 
12 AAC 64.130(1), (8) 
& (11) 

1st or MINOR Offense:  
- Letter of Advisement or up 

to $500 Imposition of Civil 
Fine 

2nd + or SERIOUS Offense: 
- Consent Agreement: 

- Up to $5,000 Fine 
- Up to 1 Year Probation 
- Suspension* 
- Up to 9 Hours Education 
- Reprimand 

- Revocation* 
 
 
 
 

 
Breach of Fiduciary Duty Broker 

Associate Broker 
Salesperson 

Failure to disclose conflicts of interest 
 
Failure to act within the provisions of the 
licensee relationships & duties identified in 
AS 08.88, Article 5 and 12 AAC 64. 

AS 08.88.071(a)(3);  
AS 08.88.071(d); 
AS 08.88173; 
AS 08.88.175; 
AS 08.88.341; 
AS 08.88.391; 
AS 08.88.396; 
AS 08.88.600 – 695; 
12 AAC 64.118; 
12 AAC 64.119; 
12 AAC 64.130(1), (3), 
(6), (9 - 15) & (19); 
12 AAC 64.550 - 580 
 

1st or MINOR Offense:  
- Letter of Advisement or up 

to $2,500 Imposition of Civil 
Fine 

2nd + or SERIOUS Offense: 
- Consent Agreement: 

- Up to $5,000 Fine 
- Up to 2 Years Probation 
- Suspension* 
- Up to 9 Hours Education 
- Reprimand 

- Revocation* 



REAL ESTATE COMMISSION DISCIPLINARY SANCTIONS MATRIX 
 

(Rev. 3/2021)                         Page 2 of 7 

 

 

 

 

Category Type of 
License 
Affected 

Description of Violation Authority Disciplinary Sanctions 

Continuing Education  
 

Broker 
Associate Broker 
Salesperson 

Failure to complete the required 20hrs of 
continuing education during the applicable 
renewal cycle, and certifying on the 
renewal application that the education was 
completed 

AS 08.88.091(d) & (g); 
12 AAC 02.960;  
12 AAC 02.965;  
12 AAC 64.063(f);  
12 AAC 64.071(b)(4); 
12 AAC 64.500(b), (d) 
& (j) 

- Consent Agreement: 
- $2,500 fine ($2,000 

suspended) + $50/Hour 
of Non-Completed CEs 

- Provide Documentation 
of Completed Remedial 
CEs 

- Mandatory Audit for 2 
Renewal Cycles 

- Reprimand 
Criminal Action – No Conviction 
 

Broker  
Associate Broker 
Salesperson 
 

Being charged with crime(s) that are a 
matter of public safety – engaging in 
conduct of which the Commission did not 
have knowledge at the time the license was 
issued & demonstrates unfitness to engage 
in the business for which they are licensed  

AS 08.88.071 (a)(3)(C);  
12 AAC 64.130(1), (11) 
& (15) 

Should Only Be Utilized if 
Public Safety is Concerned: 
- Suspension 
- Revocation 
- Other Disciplinary Sanctions 

via Consent Agreement – 
not typical 

Criminal Action – Conviction 
 

Broker 
Associate Broker 
Salesperson 
 

Being found guilty of a felony or other 
crime committed that affects the ability to 
practice real estate OR being found guilty 
of forgery, theft, larceny, embezzlement, 
obtaining money under false pretenses, 
extorsion, fraud, conspiracy to defraud, or 
other similar offenses 

AS 08.88.071(a)(11); 
12 AAC 64.130(1), (5) 
& (15) 

Seriousness of Crime Should 
be Considered: 
- Consent Agreement: 

- Fine 
- Probation 
- Suspension* 
- Limitations on Practice 
- Education 
- Reprimand 

- Revocation* 



REAL ESTATE COMMISSION DISCIPLINARY SANCTIONS MATRIX 
 

(Rev. 3/2021)                         Page 3 of 7 

Category Type of 
License 
Affected 

Description of Violation Authority Disciplinary Sanctions 

Falsified Application 
 

Broker 
Associate Broker 
Salesperson 
 

Procuring a license by deceiving the 
Commission or aiding another to do so 
 
Making a false/fraudulent representation 
or material misstatement on an application 
for a license, renewal, exam, or any other 
material requested under 12 AAC 64.060(b)  

AS 08.88.071(a)(3)(B);  
12 AAC 64.130(1), (11) 
& (15); 
12 AAC 64.160(a) 
 

Initial Application: 
- Letter of Advisement 
- Up to $1,000 Imposition of 

Civil Fine 
- Consent Agreement: 

- Up to 2 Years Probation 
- Up to 2 Hours Education 
- Reprimand 

- License Denial 
Renewal Application: 
- Letter of Advisement  
- Up to $1,000 Imposition of 

Civil Fine 
- Consent Agreement: 

- Up to 2 Years Probation 
- Suspension* 
- Up to 2 Hours Education 
- Reprimand 

- Revocation* 
Financial Scam Broker 

Associate Broker 
Salesperson 

With respect to a real estate transaction, 
making a substantial misrepresentation; 
making a false promise; pursuing a flagrant 
course of misrepresentation or making a 
false promise through another licensee; or 
engaging in conduct that is fraudulent or 
dishonest 
 
Making, authorizing, directing, or aiding in 
the publication, distribution, or circulation 
of a false statement or misrepresentation 
concerning a licensee’s business or real 
state offered for sale, rent, or lease or 
concerning an association being managed 

AS 08.88.071 
(a)(3)(A)(i) – (iv);  
AS 08.88.071(a)(3)(D); 
AS 08.88.071(a)(3)(F); 
AS 08.88.401(c); 
12 AAC 64.130(1) & 
(11) 

 

1st or MINOR Offense:  
- Letter of Advisement or up 

to $500 Imposition of Civil 
Fine 

2nd + or SERIOUS Offense: 
- Consent Agreement: 

- Up to $10,000 Fine 
- Up to 5 Years Probation 
- Suspension* 
- Up to 20 Hours 

Education 
- Reprimand 

Revocation* 



REAL ESTATE COMMISSION DISCIPLINARY SANCTIONS MATRIX 
 

(Rev. 3/2021)                         Page 4 of 7 

 

 

 

Category Type of 
License 
Affected 

Description of Violation Authority Disciplinary Sanctions 

Fraud or Misrepresentation 
 

Broker 
Associate Broker 
Salesperson 

 

With respect to a real estate transaction, 
making a substantial misrepresentation; 
making a false promise; pursuing a flagrant 
course of misrepresentation or making a false 
promise through another licensee; or engaging 
in conduct that is fraudulent or dishonest 
 
Making, authorizing, directing, or aiding in the 
publication, distribution, or circulation of a 
false statement or misrepresentation 
concerning a licensee’s business or real estate 
offered for sale, rent, or lease or concerning 
an association being managed 
 
An associate broker or salesperson claiming to 
be a broker  
 
Falsely representing to: have been awarded a 
degree/designation; be a member or affiliate 
of a professional organization; or be a member 
of a franchise/other business association 
 
Making a false/misleading statement to the 
Commission regarding an alleged violation, 
regulations set forth, or qualifications of a 
licensee 
 
Failure to comply with 12 AAC 64.180 –  
12 AAC 64.271 or failure to turn over required 
records to the Commission 

AS 08.88.071 
(a)(3)(A)(i) – (iv);  
AS 08.88.071 
(a)(3)(D); 
AS 08.88.071 
(a)(3)(F);  
AS 08.88.401(a); 
AS 08.88.401(c); 
AS 08.88.401(f); 
12 AAC 64.130(1) & 
(11);  
12 AAC 64.160;  
12 AAC 64.260 

 

1st or MINOR Offense:  
- Letter of Advisement or up 

to $2,500 Imposition of Civil 
Fine 

2nd + or SERIOUS Offense: 
- Consent Agreement: 

- Up to $10,000 Fine 
- Up to 5 Years Probation 
- Suspension* 
- Up to 20 Hours 

Education 
- Reprimand 

- Revocation* 



REAL ESTATE COMMISSION DISCIPLINARY SANCTIONS MATRIX 
 

(Rev. 3/2021)                         Page 5 of 7 

Category Type of 
License 
Affected 

Description of Violation Authority Disciplinary Sanctions 

Substance Abuse 
 

Broker 
Associate Broker 
Salesperson 
 

Engaging in conduct the Commission did 
not have knowledge of at the time the 
licensee was licensed, demonstrating the 
licensee’s unfitness to engage in the 
business for which the licensee is licensed 

AS 08.88.071(a)(3)(C); 
12 AAC 64.130(1) & 
(11) 

1st or MINOR Offense:  
- Letter of Advisement or up to 

$2,500 Imposition of Civil 
Fine 

2nd + or SERIOUS Offense: 
- Consent Agreement: 

- Up to $5,000 Fine 
- Up to 18 Months 

Probation 
- Suspension* 
- Limitations on Practice 
- Quarterly Reports from 

Therapist, Broker & 
Licensee 

- Completion of a 
Treatment Program 

- Consume No Controlled 
Substances/Alcohol 

- AA/NA Meetings 
- Reprimand 

- Revocation* 
Supervision 
 

Broker 
Associate Broker 
 

Failure to provide adequate supervision of 
the activities of licensees for whom they 
are responsible 

AS 08.88.071; 
AS 08.88.311(a); 
12 AAC 64.078; 
12 AAC 64.125; 
12 AAC 64.128;  
12 AAC 64.130  

1st or MINOR Offense:  
- Letter of Advisement or up 

to $2,500 Imposition of Civil 
Fine 

2nd + or SERIOUS Offense: 
- Consent Agreement: 

- Up to $5,000 Fine 
- Up to 18 Months 

Probation 
- Suspension* 
- Up to 10 Hours 

Education 
- Reprimand 

- Revocation* 



REAL ESTATE COMMISSION DISCIPLINARY SANCTIONS MATRIX 
 

(Rev. 3/2021)                         Page 6 of 7 

Category Type of 
License 
Affected 

Description of Violation Authority Disciplinary 
Sanctions 

Trust Account 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Broker 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Associate Broker 
Salesperson 

Failure to keep proper trust account 
ledgers 
 
Paying fees/commissions/other 
compensation to individuals prohibited 
from receiving compensation 
 
Engaging in any other prohibited trust 
account activity 
 
 
Failure to provide all monies from a real 
estate transaction to the brokerage within 
5 days 
 
Paying fees/commissions/other 
compensation to individuals prohibited 
from receiving compensation 
 
Engaging in any other prohibited trust 
account activity 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AS 08.88.351; 
AS 08.88.401(d); 
12 AAC 64.130(3), (7) 
& (12); 
12 AAC 64.180 – 271; 
12 AAC 64.550(c);  
12 AAC 64.570(2)(D); 
12 AAC 64.580(4) 
 
 
 
AS 08.88.071(a)(3)(H); 
AS 08.88.331; 
12 AAC 64.130(3), (7) 
& (12); 
12 AAC 64.140(2); 
12 AAC 64.550(c);  
12 AAC 64.570(2)(D); 
12 AAC 64.580(4) 

- Consent Agreement: 
- Up to $50,000 Fine 
- Up to 2 Years 

Probation 
- Suspension* 
- Limitations on Practice 
- Up to 12 Hours 

Education 
- Reprimand 

- Revocation* 



REAL ESTATE COMMISSION DISCIPLINARY SANCTIONS MATRIX 
 

(Rev. 3/2021)                         Page 7 of 7 

 

Category 
 

Type of 
License 
Affected 

Description of Violation Authority Disciplinary 
Sanctions 

Unlicensed Practice No License 
Revoked License 

Performing/Engaging in activities or 
offering to perform/engage in activities 
that requires a real estate license 

AS 08.88.161; 
AS 08.88.165; 
AS 08.88.167; 
AS 08.88.401(f)(5); 
12 AAC 64.090(e); 
12 AAC 64.095(a); 
12 AAC 64.905  

- Temporary Cease & Desist 
Order (TCDO) 

- Up to $5,000 Fine 
**reference AS 08.88.167 
when considering a fine –  
not an easy sanction to 
issue/enforce** 

Unlicensed Practice 
(When License is in a 
Lapsed, Inactive, or Suspended 
Status) 
 

Broker 
Associate Broker 
Salesperson 

Performing/Engaging in activities or 
offering to perform/engage in activities 
with a lapsed or inactive license 

AS 08.88.071(a)(3); 
AS 08.88.161; 
AS 08.88.165; 
AS 08.88.167;  
AS 08.88.251(b); 
AS 08.88.401(f)(5); 
12 AAC 64.090(e); 
12 AAC 64.095(a); 
12 AAC 64.130(1) & 
(11); 
12 AAC 64.140; 
12 AAC 64.905 

1st or MINOR Offense:  
- Letter of Advisement or up 

to $2,500 Imposition of Civil 
Fine 

2nd + or SERIOUS Offense: 
- Consent Agreement: 

- Up to $5,000 Fine 
- Suspension* 
- Up to 10 Hours 

Education 
- Reprimand 

Revocation* 
Violation of Licensing 
Regulation 
 

 This is a “catch all” category that includes 
various violations that don’t fit into any 
other listed category – this type of 
conduct is variable & not succinct   

AS 08.88.011 – 990 
12 AAC 64.010 – 990 
12 AAC 02.510 - 590 

1st or MINOR Offense:  
- Letter of Advisement or up 

to $2,500 Imposition of Civil 
Fine 

2nd + or SERIOUS Offense: 
- Consent Agreement: 

- Up to $5,000 Fine 
- Up to 1 Year Probation 
- Suspension* 
- Up to 10 Hours 

Education 
- Reprimand 

- Revocation* 



 
Trust Account Requirements -12 AAC 64.110 and 180 
 
Q: Is the financial institution, where trust monies are held, required to have an actual location in Alaska? 
The regulation reads that the bank “be authorized to do business in the state”.  
Does that mean that the bank would need to be authorized to do business in AK but not necessarily be 
required to have an in-state office/bank (physical presence) in AK?   
 
The regulations below indicate that (to maintain a real estate office) the broker shall have a trust 
account in a bank that is authorized to do business in this state, and maintain that trust account within 
the state.  
 
 
12 AAC 64.110. REQUIREMENTS FOR ESTABLISHING AND MAINTAINING AN OFFICE.  
(a) A real estate broker holding an active license shall establish and maintain a principal office in this 
state. The office in which the broker works and maintains the broker’s license is the principal office of 
the broker. 
(b) A broker who maintains offices or branch offices other than the principal office or branch shall have 
an associate broker in charge of each branch office. If a broker has an associate broker in charge of an 
office, the broker 
is responsible for supervision of the associate broker. The operation of a branch office without licensed 
personnel or without an associate broker in charge is grounds for suspension or revocation of the 
broker's license. 
(c) Repealed 12/6/81. 
(d) When a broker establishes a real estate office in a location not normally considered a business 
location, the commission may require the broker to submit evidence that the office is where the broker 
and the broker's 
employees transact business and receive business calls. 
(e) A broker shall, before operating any office or branch office, register the office or branch office with 
the commission on a form provided by and approved by the commission. The information provided by 
the broker must 
include the 
(1) broker's name and license number; 
(2) business name under which the broker will operate and advertise as required by 12 AAC 64.112; 
(3) mailing address of the business and all branch offices; 
(4) physical location of the office and all branch offices; 
(5) bank account numbers of all real estate trust accounts maintained by the broker; 
(6) name and license number of all licensees employed by the broker at that office; 
(7) name of the associate broker in charge of each branch office; 
(8) telephone and facsimile number and, if available, an e-mail address of the office; 
(9) type of business organization, such as a sole proprietorship, corporation, partnership, limited 
partnership, or limited liability company; 
(10) all types of business activity practiced, such as sales, property management, community association 
management, and commercial sales. 
(f) More than one licensed broker may operate an office at the same address; each broker shall maintain 
a clearly separate office identity. 
(g) A real estate broker holding an active license shall 



(1) maintain within this state one or more trust accounts and records of all real estate transactions 
conducted in this state as required by AS 08.88.351 and 12 AAC 64.220; and 
(2) provide for acceptance of legal service at the business address registered with the commission. 
 
 
12 AAC 64.180. ESTABLISHMENT OF TRUST ACCOUNT  
(a) Every real estate broker shall establish one or more trust accounts in a federally insured bank 
authorized to do business in this state, and the name of the account so established must include the 
words "trust account" or "trustee account." 
(b) A real estate broker shall file with the commission the name of the account, the account number, 
and the name and branch of the bank that holds the account for all trust accounts maintained by the 
broker. 
(c) The broker who establishes the account shall be trustee of the account and responsible for all 
signatories to that account. 
(d) If maintenance expenses are charged against a trust account, the broker shall deposit a sum of 
money not exceeding $100 to the trust account for the purpose of paying the maintenance expenses of 
the account and shall make additional deposits when necessary, but not to exceed $100 on deposit. 
(e) All trust accounts must be demand accounts only 
 
 



HISTORY OF REC DESIGNATED CONTINUING EDUCATION (DCE) 
 
2022-2024 
Situational Ethics – 2 hours 
Property Disclosures & Inspections – 1 hour 
Contracts & Real Estate Licensing Law – 2 hours  
Prohibited Conduct – 1 hour 
Advertising and Social Media - 1 hour 
Licensee Relationships – 1 hour 
 
2020-2022 
Broker Supervision – 2 hours 
Ethics – 2 hours 
Prohibited Conduct – 2 hours 
Advertising and Social Media - 2 hours 
 
2018-2020 
Ethical Situations – 2 hours 
Understanding and Working with Title Reports, Encroachments, and Easements – 2 hrs 
Contract Law as it pertains to documents used in Real Estate – 2 hours 
Inspections and Disclosures - 2 hours 
 
2016-2018 
Situational Ethics – 2 hours 
Contract Law – 2 hours 
Consumer Protection (to include TRID) – 2 hours 
Practical Licensee Relationship Disclosure - 2 hours 
 
2014 – 2016 
Landlord Tenant Act – Basics for all licensees – 2 hours 
Current Alaska Real Estate Legal and Ethical Issues - 2 hours  
Contracts & Real Estate License Law - 2 hours  
Consumer Protection - 2 hours 
 
2012-2014 
Licensing Relationships ~ (topic 1) – 2 hours  
(w/an emphasis on the AREC Pamphlet and AK Statute 08.88.600-650) 
Property Disclosures & Inspections ~ (topic 19) – 2 hours  
(w/an emphasis on listing responsibilities, marketing properties and new construction) 
Risk Management and Real Estate License Law ~ (topics 25 & 33) – 2 hours  
(Risk Management – w/an emphasis on communication; and Real Estate License Law – w/an emphasis 
on licensed and unlicensed activities) 
Contracts and Customer Client Services ~ (topics 6 & 35) – 2 hours  
(Contracts - w/an emphasis on drafting contracts and closing transactions 
 
2010 -2012  
Licensing Relationships ~ (topic 1) – 2 hours  
Prohibited Conduct and Real Estate License Law ~ (topics 18 & 25) – 2 hours  
Property Disclosures & Inspections ~ (topic 19) – 2 hours  
Ethical Decision Making and Risk Management – (topics 30 & 33) – 2 hour 
 
 















 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Delegation for Executive 
Administrator  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
 
 



arello.org https://www.arello.org/events/viewEvent.cfm?e=181#general

1 of 2 8/14/2023, 8:59 AM



arello.org https://www.arello.org/events/viewEvent.cfm?e=181#schedule

1 of 2 8/14/2023, 8:58 AM



arello.org https://www.arello.org/events/viewEvent.cfm?e=181#schedule

2 of 2 8/14/2023, 8:58 AM



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Elections-  
Vice-Chair and Education Liaison 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Executive Administrator’s Report 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
 
 



                     LICENSING REPORT  
                      September 7th, 2023

87 Transfers:   Feb June Sept
3035 82 92 81
3324

PLE Completed: Feb June Sept
ACTIVE: 1/31/24 exp Feb June Sept 49 82 46
Broker 408 409 413
Associate Broker 393 407 408 Upgrades: Endorsement:
Salesperson 2,199 2,209 2,214 S - AB = 13  /  S - B= 1 S= 3 / AB= 1  /  B= 1
Total Active: 3,000 3,025 3,035

In this reporting period Feb June Sept
INACTIVE: 1/31/24 exp Feb June Sept License Returned 93 121 150
Broker 4 3 4 Probation License 0 0 0
Associate Broker 7 9 10 Suspended 0 0 0
Salesperson 33 46 57 Revoked 0 0 0
Total Inactive: 44 58 71 Surrendered 93 121 150

LAPSED:  NON-COMPLIANCE OF PLE w/exp date of 1/31/24 INACTIVE: 1/31/22 exp Feb June Sept
Feb June Sept Broker 4 3 2

Broker 0 0 0 Associate Broker 5 5 2
Associate Broker 0 0 0 Salesperson 52 34 16
Salesperson 14 45 53 Total Inactive: 61 42 20
Total: 14 45 53

LAPSED: 1/31/22 exp Feb June Sept
Broker 0 0 0
Associate Broker 0 0 1

Initial Licenses issued Qrtly: Jan - Mar 22 Apr - Jun 22 July-Sept  22 Salesperson 29 17 279
106 109 67 Total Lapsed: 29 17 280

Oct - Dec Apr - June 23  July-Sept  23
55 49 42

*includes licensees that are active, inactive,  lic rtnd,  probation, suspension, surrender, and lapsed (PLE), all with 1/31/2024 expiration date

New Licensees: 6/1/2023 to 8/24/2023
Total Number of Active Licensees with 1/31/2024 exp

Total Number of Licensees with 1/31/2024 exp



 
 

EDUCATION REPORT 
Sept. 7th, 2023 
 (as of 8/24/2023) 

 
 
 
 
 

Course Type Currently Approved  
Pre-Licensing (SPL) 11 
Broker Upgrade Pre-Licensing (BPL) 4 
Elective Continuing Education (ECE) 410 
Designated Continuing Education (DCE) 110 
DCE & ECE -36 
PLE & ECE -61 
Post Licensing Education (PLE) 
 

77 

 Total: 515  

Initial courses approved between 6/1/23 and 8/24/23                22 

 
Instructor  
Permanent 

 
 

95 

New Instructor 2 
• Katie Sindorf  – Wasilla 
• Nick Campos - Iowa 

 

Temporary Instructor   0 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Recovery Fund Report 
(Not yet available due to end of year processing. 

Staff will notify Commission members when 
available in OnBoard)  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Commission Member Comments and 
Questions  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
 
 
























	REC Meeting September 7, 2023
	Roll Call
	Approval of Agenda
	Statements fo Conflicts of Interest
	Public Comment
	Review of Meeting Minutes
	Investigative Report
	Old Business
	2024 REC Strategic Plan
	Status of Proposed Reguations
	New Business
	Disciplinary Matrix
	Trust Account Requirements
	History of DCE
	Delegation of Executive Administrator
	ARELLO Investigation Seminer 
	Election of Vice-Chair and Education Liaison
	Executive Administrator Report
	Licensing Statistics
	Education Report
	Recovery Fund Report
	Commission Member Comments and Questions
	2023 ARELLO Boundaries 



